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Report of the Board of Governors 

Nature, Objectives and Strategies 

Strode College 

Governors' report and financial statements 

for the year ended 31 July 2019 

The Governors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2019. 

Legal status 

Strode College ("the College") is a corporation established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992. 

Strode College corporation is a distinct legal entity that has members appointed in accordance with the College's 

instrument of governance. 

The members' principal role, other than to act as members of the corporation, is to provide governance over the 

College and they are referred to as Governors and collectively the Board of Governors in this Governors' report 

and financial statements. 

The College is also an exempt charity for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011 and members/ Governors are also 

trustees for the purposes of that act. 

Vision and mission 

The College's vision and mission, during the year, as approved by the Board of Governors were as follows: 

Strode College's vision: 

"Inspiring all to maximise their potential" 

Strode College's mission is to be: 

"The region's first choice for high quality education and training." 

Public benefit 

The College is an exempt charity under the Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the Secretary of 

State for Education as principal regulator for all further education corporations in England. 

In setting and reviewing the College's strategic objectives, the Board of Governors has had due regard for the 

Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the 

advancement of education. The guidance sets out the requirement that all organisations wishing to be recognised 

as charities must demonstrate, explicitly, that their aims are for the benefit of the public. 

As a rural Further Education College with a focus on provision for 16-18 year olds, the College provides high quality 

learning opportunities suitable for a wide range of abilities and interests, in an environment where students can 

develop as individuals. The College contributes to the development of a dynamic local, regional and national 

economy by enhancing the employability of our students and preparing them for higher education. The College 

aims to promote the economic, social and cultural life of the local community through work with business, the 

professions, community groups and local government and by encouraging the local community to make use of the 

College's facilities. 
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In delivering our mission, the College provides the following identifiable public benefits through the advancement 
of education: 

• High-quality teaching 
• Widening participation and tackling social exclusion 

• Excellent employment record for students 
• Strong student support systems 
• Links with employers, industry and commerce 
• Links with Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) 

Implementation of strategic plan 

In January 2018, the Board of Governors approved the College's strategic plan for the financial years 2018 to 2021. 

This strategic plan includes a property strategy and financial forecasts. The Board of Governors monitors the 

performance of the College against these plans. The plans are reviewed and updated each year. The College's 

strategic objectives are: 

1. To provide outstanding education and training 
• Ensure at least 95% of students achieve a positive progression or destination outcome 

• Sustain student progress, measured through value added, at least in the top 25% of Colleges 

nationally 

• Achievement rates for all learners will exceed national averages 

• Maintain Ofsted Outstanding 

• Achieve a successful HE quality review each year 

2. To sustain robust finances 
• Achieve an ESFA financial assessment of good by 2020 

• Strive to award at least a 1% cost of living pay rise each year 

• Re-invest annually into the campus benefiting our local community and students 

• Achieve cash operating surplus target of at least 7% 

3. To provide an inclusive and safe community of learning 
• Provide ongoing investment into the campus to ensure modern and innovative learning and social 

spaces. 

• Ensure learners, staff and visitors feel safe and are safe 

• Provide an inclusive and welcoming place to learn and work 

• Ensure that no groups are disadvantaged 

4. To be a rewarding and inspiring place to work 
• Enable our workforce to deliver high quality teaching and learning and support services 

• Encourage and support development through a culture of creativity, innovation and lifelong learning 

• Maintain a balanced and diverse workforce that has the skillset to meet current and future education 

and training needs 

• Provide opportunities for cross college collaboration and social activities 

• Recognise and celebrate outstanding performance and achievements 

• Listen and respond to staff ideas and suggestions 

4 



Strode College 

Governors' report and financial statements 

for the year ended 31 July 2019 

5. To meet the education and social needs of our learners and wider community 
• Ensure our curriculum offer delivers high quality adult professional and leisure courses; provides 

affordable Higher Education; meets the needs of local employers and continues to deliver 

outstanding, full time Study Programmes. 

• Build on the strong relationships in place with local schools at least maintaining the current level of 

full time students. 

• Maintain a vibrant theatre programme and high quality community sports facilities 

• Create a new "heart of the campus" with a central student hub, new reception and entrance, 

outward facing community facilities and a hospitality-training centre of excellence. 

6. To expand our work with local and national employers 
• Maximise opportunities to enhance the development of key employability skills for all learners, 

ensuring they are best placed and ready to secure high quality and rewarding jobs, which lead to 

successful careers. 

• Listen and respond to the training needs of local and national, levy and non-levy paying employers 

• Provide training opportunities that meet local and nationally identified skills shortages 

• Increase income generated from apprenticeships and other employer related training 

Financial objectives 

The College's financial objectives are: 

Objective Outcome in 2019 
1. Progress towards a Good financial health grade with the EFSA by 2020. Financial health grade of 'Good' 

achieved in 2018/19 

2. Generate a minimum cash operating surplus or Earnings Before Achieved - EBTIDA = 6.5% 
Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) of 5%, with a 

long term target of achieving 7%. 

3. Deliver and maintain a current ratio above 1.0 (excluding FRS102 Achieved - 1.03 
adjustments). 

4. Maintain Borrowing to Income ratio below 40% Achieved - 25.6% 
5. Generate sufficient additional income to ensure adequate funding is A strong financial outturn in 

available to: 2018/19 and an increase in 
5.1. Recruit and retain staff funding for 2020/21 should 
5.2. Fund premises maintenance and repairs at a sustainable level enable the college to increase 
5.3. Fund IT support and maintenance at a sustainable level overhead and capital budgets 
5.4. Replace/ renew capital assets on a reasonable timescale when appropriate. 

6. Comply with banking covenants Achieved 
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The table below shows the results for the College presented in the format used internally by all levels of 

management and governance. The College's key financial metric is cash operating surplus which is defined as 

surplus/ deficit on continuing operations before excluding depreciation, interest and other finance costs, capital 

grants received and FRS102 adjustments for defined benefit pensions and accrued holiday pay. 

For the year For the year 

ended 31 July ended 31 July 

2019 2018 

Income £14,225k £13,082K 

Expenditure £13,285k £12,551k 

Cash operating surplus £940K £531k 

Cash operating surplus % 6.6% I 4.1% I 

Pay to income ratio 55.3% 60.4% I 

Capital Expenditure £170k £375k 

Cash at bank and in hand as at 31 July 2019 £1,130k £1,032k 

Current Ratio 1.03 0.82 

Borrowing as a percentage of income 25.6% 30.4% 

Education and Skills Funding Agency Financial Health Rating Good Satisfactory 

The tables below reconcile the cash operating surplus above to the total comprehensive income Including 

depreciation, interest and other finance costs, capital grants received and FRS102 adjustments for defined benefit 

pensions and accrued holiday pay for both 2017 and 2018. 

Year to 31 July 2019 Income Expenditure Total 

comprehensive 

income 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Cash operating surplus 14,225 13,285 940 
Capital grants received 2 2 

Bank interest received 2 2 

Depreciation 700 {700} 

Interest charges (including FRS102 - net interest cost on defined 
312 {312} 

benefit pension liabilities of £208k} 

FRS102 - Defined benefit pension scheme adjustment 459 {459} 

(Deficit) on continuing operations 14,229 14,756 (527) 
Actuarial loss in respect of pensions schemes {502) 

Total comprehensive Income for the year (1,029) 
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Year to 31 July 2018 Income 

£'000 

Cash operating surplus 13,082 
Capital grants received 145 

Depreciation 

Interest charges (including FRS102 - net interest cost on defined 

benefit pension liabilities of £248k) 

FRS102 - Defined benefit pension scheme adjustment 

FRS102 - Holiday pay accrual movement 

(Deficit) on continuing operations 13,227 
Actuarial gain in respect of pensions schemes 

Total comprehensive Income for the year 
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Expenditure Total 

comprehensive 

income 

£'000 £'000 

12,551 531 
145 

717 (717) 

364 (364) 

579 (579) 

(10) 10 

14,201 (974) 
2,205 

1,231 

The College has significant reliance on the education sector funding bodies for its principal funding source, largely 

from recurrent grants. In 2019 these funding bodies provided 77% (2018 - 77%) of the College's total income. 

Treasury policies and objectives 

Treasury management is the management of the College's cash flows, banking, money market and capital market 

transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 

performance consistent with those risks. 

The College has a treasury management policy in place. 

Short term borrowing for temporary revenue purposes is authorised by the Accounting Officer. All other 

borrowing requires the authorisation of the Board of Governors and shall comply with the requirements of the 

Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) conditions of funding. 

Cash flows and liquidity 

Operating cash flow was £694,000 (2018 - £829,000). There was a net cash inflow for the year after loan 

repayments and fixed asset investments of £98,000, (2018 - net cash outflow of £14,000). 

The size of the College's total borrowing and our approach to interest rates has been calculated to ensure a 

reasonable cushion between the total cost of servicing debt and operating cash flow. During the year this margin 

was comfortably exceeded. 

Reserves policy 

The College has adopted a policy of targeting a minimum of 5% EBITDA surplus each year. Achievement of this 

target will contribute to a satisfactory financial health rating with the ESFA and satisfies the College's loan 

covenants. 

In respect of accumulated reserves the College is required to retain the greater of £3,000,000 of 25% of gross 

income of general reserves, excluding any defined benefit pension scheme liabilities, in order to satisfy our loan 

covenants. The College will seek to utilise additional reserves, as cash levels permit, for the benefit of students. 
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Current and future development and performance 

Student numbers 

16-19 learners 

Adult Learners 

HE learners 

Apprentices 

Traineeships 

Adult Leisure Learners 
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2018/19 2017/18 

Number Number 

1,386 1,496 

4,256 958 

137 106 

566 683 

302 274 

485 468 

7,132 3,985 

The increase in adult learners is due to one of our subcontract partners delivering a high volume of short courses. 

Student achievements 

Advanced Level students continue to make excellent progress at the College. The College uses Alps, a widely used 

system for tracking and measuring student progress on post 16 courses. The single year Alps grade, for A Level of 

grade 2 places the college within the top 10% nationally. The single grade Alps score of 4 for 2010 BTEC's puts us 

in the top 40% nationally, however the 2016 BTEC score of grade 2 puts us in the top 10% nationally. (2018 -

Grade 2 - top 10% nationally}. 

GCSE resit performance was down in line with national performance but is still significantly above the national 

average of 21.5%. 

A Levels Level 3 Vocational GCSE resit 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Pass Rate 99% 100% 97% 98% 

Achieved minimum target grade 77% 77% 85% 90% 

Grades at A*- B 62% 64% 
(JCQ England average 2019: 51.1%) 

Extended diplomas - DDM 72% 79% 
Grades at A*- C 87% 89% 
{JCQ England average 2019 75.5%} 

GCSE Grades at 9-4 38% 40% 
{NARTS 2017-2018 21.5%} 

Teacher qualifications 

Teaching staff are required to hold, or to be working towards, a teaching qualification relevant to their 

role. During 2019, 90% of full time staff held a full teaching qualification i.e. PGCE, Cert Ed or equivalent (2018 -

99%}. 79% of part time staff held a relevant teaching qualification appropriate for their role (2018 - 95%}. 

Future developments 

The College's strategic plan clearly articulates its ambition to maintain outstanding education and training and full 
time study programme achievements remain very strong. Value added continues to rise and the college is 

consistently in the top 10% nationally. From September 2019, A levels are now fully linear. The College is a 2020 T 

level provider and will be offering new T levels in Education and Childcare and Digital. It is also working closely with 
relevant agencies to support the development and trial of the new Digital and Education and Childcare Transition 

programmes. The College plans to offer Health, Health Care Science and Science T levels from 2021. Alongside 

these significant new developments, the College is using the Capacity Development Fund to enrich, strengthen and 
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improve the infrastructure, processes and systems to enable high quality employer engagement for students. 

Good relationships are being developed with local employers and there is a positive appetite from local businesses 
to be involved with the College. 

Apprenticeship achievement is also steadily improving after a period of weak quality outcomes resulting from a 

historic, poor performing sub-contractor. The College ceased all contracts with this provider in 2018. 

Apprenticeship growth in targeted areas is progressing in a manageable way; Engineering, Hospitality, Childcare, 

Hair, Business Admin and Digital. In addition, the College is delivering some niche Medical Engineering 

apprenticeships with the NHS. An in novative delivery model has been adopted in Digital and medical engineering 

in order to secure high quality, specialist trainers who also have the industry contacts, credibility and experience. 

Continued, steady growth is planned, subject to funding availability. 

Higher Education courses continue to remain popular, with year on year increases in HE numbers achieved for the 

past four years. A new Foundation Degree in English with Creative Writing was launched in September 2019. In 

addition, the College is delivering a higher apprenticeship in partnership with Historic England. Steady, realistic 

growth in HE student numbers is planned for, as in built growth materialises as a result of the recent new H E  

programmes. 

Adult learning opportunities remain focused on current programmes of excellence such as Counselling. Small 

growth is plan ned for in Access to H E  and skills programmes in partnership with J CP and a key local employer. The 

introduction of the adult digital entitlement from September 2020 will present new opportunities for the College 

to engage with and upskill its local communities. 

The College's sub-contracting network is strong with some high quality outcomes, particularly in traineeships. 

Robust internal support systems and processes now enhance this provision with sub-contractors hugely valuing 

the support, training, advice, knowledge and expertise of the College to enable them to deliver high quality 

train ing. Devolution in London has impacted upon the partnership work in London and the College has submitted 

an appeal/exception to the Greater London Authority in order to allow us to continue to support these training 

providers with training in London. 

The College has secured flm of capital investment for the refurbishment of C block and upgrading of the ground 

floor of M Block in preparation for the new T levels in September 2020. 

In partnership with Mendip District Council, a new business start-up community will be launched in 2020. "Create 

Strode" is an innovative project which transforms refurbished container units into affordable office space. Seven 

new office units and a new cafe will be located by the Sports Centre. Students will be able to access work 

experience, placements and apprenticeship opportunities. The cafe will be managed by the College and provide 

refreshments to the sports centre and All Weather Pitch community user groups as well as the businesses renting 

units in Create Strode. 

A new College Property Strategy will be written during 2019-20 which will aim to address the remaining Category C 

aspects of the Estate. This will include the College's longer term vision of relocating its Hair and Beauty Salons to 

the ground floor and creating a new Training kitchen and restaurant to service the Theatre. In addition, it is 

planned to co-locate all student study and social spaces, main reception, refectory and student support functions 

together, creating a new "central heart" to the College campus. 

Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis with the balance sheet showing net current 

liabilities of £370,000 {2018 - £776,000) 

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect our future development and performance are 

set out in the Report of the Board of Governors. The financial position of the College, our cash flow, liquidity and 

borrowings are described in these financial statements and accompanying notes. 

The College currently has £3,910,000 of loans outstanding with bankers on terms negotiated in 2013. The terms of 

the existing agreement run until 31 July 2021, at which point the loan will need to be renegotiated. The College's 
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forecasts and financial projections indicate that we will be able to operate within this existing facility and meet the 

bank's loan covenants for the foreseeable future. 

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that we have adequate resources to continue in operational 

existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason we will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the 

preparation of our financial statements. 

Resources 

The College has various resources that we can deploy in pursuit of our strategic objectives. 

Tangible resources include: 

Financial 

The College has net assets of £ 2,300,000 (after deducting £9,247,000 defined benefit pension scheme liabilities) 

(2018 - £3,331,000 (after deducting £8,078,000 defined benefit pension scheme liabilities)) and long term debt of 

£3,655,000 (2018 - £3,910,000). 

Estates 

The College has a well-managed campus and we have renewed a significant portion of our building stock since 

2001. In September 2014, we opened a new Higher Education and Skills Building, which provides a very high 

standard of accommodation for delivering employer-facing provision, including apprenticeships, traineeships, 

functional skills and full cost work. Since opening the building, both apprenticeship numbers and the number of 

students studying higher level qualifications have grown. Students and employers report that it is a valuable 

resource for the area. 

The College has received a Department for Education capital grant to refurbish one of the ageing blocks on the 

estate and make alterations to another, in readiness to deliver the new T-Level qualifications. 

People 

The College employs 341 people (213 Full Time Equivalents (FTE)), (2018 - 341 (221 FTE)), of whom 226 (133 FTE) 

(2018 - 214 (137 FTE)) are teaching staff or student support staff. 

Reputation 

The College has a good reputation locally and nationally. Maintaining a quality brand is essential for the College's 

success in attracting students and external relationships. 

In September 2014, the College was subject to a full Ofsted inspection. The grades awarded by Ofsted were as 

follows: 

Outcomes for students 

Quality of teaching, learning and assessment 

Effectiveness of leadership and management 

Overall effectiveness 

Principal  Risks and Uncertainties 

Outstanding, Grade 1 

Outstanding, Grade 1 

Outstanding, Grade 1 

Outstanding, Grade 1 

The College has undertaken further work during the year to develop and embed the system of internal control, 

including financial, operational and risk management which is designed to protect the College's assets and 

reputation. 

Based on the strategic plan, the Senior Management Team undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to 

which the College is exposed. They identify systems and procedures, including specific preventative actions which 
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shou ld m itigate any potential impact on the Col lege. The internal  controls a re then implemented and the 

su bsequent year's appra i sa l  w i l l  review their  effectiveness and progress aga inst r isk m itigation actions. I n  addit ion 

to the annua l  review, the Senior Management Tea m wi l l  a lso consider any r isks which may arise as a result  of a 

new a rea of work being undertaken by the Col lege. 

A r isk register is ma intained at the Col lege level which is updated regu la r ly and reviewed at least termly by the 

Audit Committee and more frequently where necessary. The risk register identifies the key risks, the l i ke l ihood of 

those r isks occu rri ng, their  potent ia l  impact on the Col l ege and  the act ions being taken to reduce and mit igate the 

risks. In add it ion, i n  the event that the risk materi a l i ses despite preventative act ions, the register identifies fu rther 

actions to mit igate the i m pact of the mater ia l i s ing r isk. Risks are then mapped against a "heat map" which shows 

movement in r isks on a l i ke l ihood/impact matrix fol lowing r isk treatment. 

Out l ined below is a description of the pr inc ipa l  r isk factors that may affect the Co l lege. Not a l l  the factors are 

within the Col lege's control. Other factors besides those l isted below may a l so adversely affect the Col lege. 

• Government funding 
The Col l ege has considera ble re l iance on cont inued government fu nding through the education sector fu nd ing 

bodies. I n  2018, 77% of the Col lege's reven ue was fu nded by these bodies and this level of requ i rement is 

expected to continue .  There is no assurance that government pol icy or pract ice wi l l  remain the same or that 

pub l ic  fu nding wil l  continue  at  the same levels or  on the same terms. 

The Col l ege is aware of th ree specific issues which may impact on futu re income of the Col lege: 

• Apprenticesh ip fu nd ing changed i n  May 2017, with some fu nd ing now routed d i rectly through employers, 

rather than being pa id d i rectly to the Col lege. Employers are free to choose any provider for 

apprenticesh ip  tra in ing provis ion, which cou l d  result in reduced i ncome for the Col lege. 

• In 2018 the Col lege de l ivered around £500,000 of t ra in ing fu nded by the ESFA Adu lt Education Budget in  

the  Greater London Authority (GLA) Area. F rom 2019 th is  fu nd ing wi l l  be devolved to the  GLA. The GLA 

has ind icated that for 2019 at least th is  fund ing wi l l  be granted to the Col lege but there is no certai nty 

over how long th is  grant wi l l  continue .  The Col lege del ivers the rema inder of its Adult Educat ion Budget 

in non-devolved a reas. For a l l  of this fund ing there is a risk that the Col l ege wi l l  not secure the same l evel 

of i ncome in the future. 

• Cu rrent government fu nd ing is set at a flat cash level, with no a l lowance for increasing costs. There is a 

r isk that the Col lege w i l l  be unab le to continue  to find effi c iencies and/or addit ional sou rces of income to 

meet this rea l terms reduction in fund ing. However, a DfE review of fu nd ing for 2020/2 1 wil l  see a 4 .7% 

increase in the base rate of fu nd ing for 16-19 progra mme fu nd ing. 

These specific risks are mitigated by the fol lowing: 

• ensur ing the Col lege is r igorous in del ivering high qua l ity education and tra in ing; 

• focusing on ma inta in ing and managing key relat ionsh ips with the various employers, loca l authorit ies and  

fu nd ing bodies; and  

• continua l ly reviewing costs and seeking a lternative sou rces of income. 

• Maintain adequate funding of pension cost and liabilities 
The Col lege is lega l ly ob l iged to enro l  any teaching staff in the Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) .  The TPS has 

recently announced that employer contr ibut ions to the scheme wi l l  i ncrease from Septem ber 2019 from 16% 

to 23%. This i ncrease in  cost may be covered by add it iona l  grants from government unt i l  March 2021, 

however after that it is unclear if add it ional  fu nd ing wi l l  be ava i l ab le. If fund ing is not made ava i l ab le  the 

Col lege wil l  need to cover the add it iona l  cost of around £250,000 from its own resources. 

The Col lege has a significant deficit on its Local Government Pension Scheme ( LGPS) .  The LGPS currently treats 

the Col lege as a government backed organisat ion and  as a conseq uence accepts a long term deficit reduction 

plan from the Col lege and does not requ ire any secu rity. 
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There is a r isk that changes being implemented by the govern ment to the i nsolvency regi me for col l eges or the 

levels of fu nd ing the government d i rects towards col leges could result i n  a change to the LGPS's approach to 

co l lege pension scheme d eficits. I f  this ha ppens the Col lege may struggle to either afford i ncreased deficit 

reduct ion contribut ions or provide a ny security. 

To m itigate this r isk the Col lege wi l l  continue  to l obby key sta keholders and support the efforts of other 

groups lobbying to ensure co l lege fu nd ing is prior it ised and any changes to the insolvency regime or col lege 

funding genera l ly do not have an adverse impact on cu rrent LGPS deficit fu nd ing plans .  

• Student numbers 
The loca l  demogra phy over the next few yea rs is u n l i kely to result i n  a ny growth in the number of 16 and  17 

year o lds moving into further educat ion. There is a r isk that demographic changes at i nd ividua l  schools over 

the period and  increased competition for students from other providers w i l l  result in  the Col lege recru it ing 

fewer students and suffering a loss of i ncome as  a resu lt .  

To m itigate this r isk, the Col lege cont in ues to invest i n  i ts  School  L ia ison activities and places sign ificance 

importance on this work. The Col lege has commiss ioned external  market research in order to strengthen its 

brand with key stakeholders and  cont inue to d ifferentiate effectively from local competitors. We wi l l  a lso 

cont inue to develop our cu rr icu l um to strengthen the com petitive advantage of the qua l ity and variety of 

cu rricu l um that we offer. An increased focus on L2 programmes and a strengthening of i nternal  "Next Steps" 

a dvice and  gu idance wi l l  ensure internal  progression  rema ins  h igh.  

• Building Repairs 
Two of the Col lege's seven ma in  bu i ld ings were bu i lt i n  the 1960s and  1970s. These bu i ld i ngs are i n  a 

reasonab le state of repa i r; however, given their  age, there is a r isk that substa nt ia l  repa irs or refurbish ment 

wil l  be requ i red .  I f  this r isk materia l ises i n  the sho rt term the Col lege may not have sufficient fu nds to 

u ndertake the works. 

I n  the long term the Co l l ege a ims to mitigate this risk by b idd ing for capita l fu nd ing to replace these bu i ld ing if 

such opportun ities a rise. The Col l ege has been successfu l i n  secu r ing a flm capita l grant to part refu rbish one 

of these bu i ld ings for de l ivery of the new T-Level qua l ificat ions .  

Stakeholder Relationships 

I n  l i ne  with other col leges and  with un iversit ies, Strode Co l lege has many sta keholders .  These i nc lude :  

• Students 
• Education sector fu nd ing bod ies 
• Staff 
• Loca l emp loyers 
• Loca l schools, part icu la rly partner schools 
• Local a uthorit ies 
• Government offices/ Local Enterprise Partnersh ips 
• Loca l commun ity 
• Other col leges and  u n iversities 
• Trade u nions 
• Profess ional  bodies 

The Co l lege recognises the im porta nce of these relationsh ips and engages in  regu lar  commun icat ion with them. 
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The College is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work with us. The College 

respects and values differences and strives to remove barriers which place people at a disadvantage. The College 

will challenge bigotry, discrimination, bullying, harassment and victimisation. 

The College has an equality scheme which is reviewed on a planned cycle and actions are implemented as 

appropriate. This scheme is published on the College's intranet and website. The College publishes an Annual 

Equality Report and an action plan to comply with the Equality Act 2010. The College undertakes equa lity impact 

assessments on all new and existing policies and procedures and records the results. 

The College is a 'Positive about Disabled' employer and has committed to the principles and objectives of the 

Positive about Disabled standard. The College considers all employment applications from disabled persons, 

bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals concerned, and guarantees an interview to any disabled applicant 

who meets the essential criteria for the post. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made 

to ensure that employment with the College continues. The College's policy is to provide training, career 

development and opportunities for promotion which, as far as possible, provide identical opportunities to those of 

non-disabled employees. 

The College has a cycle of training to update staff on equality and diversity related issues. All staff as part of their 

probation period must attend equality and diversity training to complete their probation. To support this, equality 

and diversity is also part of the staff review and development process. 

Disability statement 

The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010 and the Children's and Families Act 

2016. 

As part of our property strategy the College has ensured that all our buildings are accessible. 

The College has a Head of Student Services who performs the role of access co-ordinator providing information, 

advice and arranging support for students with learning difficulties and/or physical disabilities. Support is provided 

prior to coming to the College, during their time at the College and when making the transition to the next stage of 

education, training or employment. 

There is a list of specialist equipment, such as radio aids, persona l care equipment and mini-corns, which the 

College can make available for use by students. Other adaptive equipment can be provided depending on each 

individual student's needs. A range of assistive technology is available in the college's learning centre, computer 

centre and with the additional support team. 

The admissions policy for all students is described in the College charter and in the accessibility statement. Appeals 

against a decision not to offer a place are dealt with under the complaints policy. 

The College has made a significant investment in the appointment of specialist lecturers and training of existing 

lecturers to support students with learning difficulties and/or disabilities. There are a number of learning support 
assistants who can provide a variety of support for learning. There is a continuing programme of staff development 

to ensure the provision of a high level of appropriate support for students who have learning difficulties and/or 

disabilities. 

Specialist programmes are described in College prospectuses, and achievements and destinations are recorded 

and published in the standard College format. 

Counselling and welfare services are described in the College Student Guide, which is issued to students together 

with the Complaints and Disciplinary Procedure leaflets at induction. 
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The College provides staff members who are union representatives paid time off from work to fulfil their union 

duties. This time off is called facility time. 

The Trade Union { Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College to publish 

information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College. 

For the year 
ended 31 
July 2019 

Numbers of employees who were relevant union officials during the period. 3 

Full-time equivalent employee number 2.8FTE 

Percentage of time spent on facility time: 

1-50% 
3 

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time 0.03% 

Total cost of facility time £ 2,521 

Total pay bill £8,320,000 

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility 0% 

time 

Payment performance 

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, in the absence of agreement to the contrary, requires 

organisations. During the accounting period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2019, the College paid 98% per cent of its 

invoices within 30 days of receipt by the finance department. The College incurred no interest charges in respect of 

late payment for this period. 

Disclosure of Information to Auditors 

The Governors who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, 

there is no relevant audit information of which the College's auditor is unaware; and each governor has taken all 

the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that 

the College's auditors are aware of that information. 

Approved by order of the Board of Governors on 18 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by: 

Kate Lovell 

Chair of Governors 
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The following statement is provided to give readers of this Governors' report and financial statements for the 

College a better understanding of the College's governance and legal structure. This statement covers the period 

from 1st August 2018 to 31st July 2019 and up to the date of approval of the Governor's report and financial 

statements. 

The College endeavours to conduct its business: 

i. in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in Public Life 

(selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and leadership) ;  

ii. in full accordance with the guidance to colleges from the Association of Colleges Code of Good 

Governance for English Colleges; 

iii. having due regard to the Charity Governance Code; and 
iv. having due regard to the UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 insofar as it is applicable to the further 

education sector. 

The Board of Governors recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a particular 

duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times. In carrying out its responsibilities, it 

has adopted the Association of Colleges Code of Good Governance for English Colleges. 

In the opinion of the Board of Governors, the College complies with all the provisions of this code, and it has 

complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2018, except to where Governors have been in post for more the 8 

years, the Board of Governors has decided that that it is in the best interests of the College not to follow the 

recommendation of the code that the maximum term for Governors should be 8 years. 

The Board of Governors, whilst not having adopted the U K  Corporate Governance Code 2016, has due regard to its 

principles and guidance. 

The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011. The Governors, who are 

also the Trustees for the purposes of the Charities Act 2011, confirm that they have had due regard for the Charity 

Commission's guidance on public benefit and that the required statements appear elsewhere in these financial 
statements. 

Board of Governors 

It is the Board of Governor's responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, 

performance, resources and standards of conduct. 

The Board of Governors is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial performance of 

the College together with other information such as performance against funding targets, proposed capital 

expenditure, quality matters and personnel related matters such as health and safety and environmental issues. 

The Board of Governors conducts its business through a number of committees. Each committee has terms of 

reference, which have been approved by the Board of Governors. These committees are Finance and Personnel, 

Academic Standard and Quality, Search and Governance, Remuneration, Audit, and Theatre Board. 

Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Governors in a timely manner, prior to board and committee 

meetings. Briefings are also provided on an ad-hoe basis. 
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Full approved minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be confidential by the Board of Governors, are 

available on the governance area of the College website at www.strode-college.ac.uk and from the Clerk to the 
Corporation at: 

Strode College 

Church Road 

Street 

Somerset 

BA16 0AB 

The Board of Governors has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or group 

dominates its decision making process. The Board of Governors considers that each of its non-executive Governors 

is independent of management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere 

with the exercise of their independent judgement. 

The Clerk to the Corporation maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the Governors, which is 

updated annually. The register is available for inspection at the above address. 

There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair of the Board of Governors and the 

Accounting Officer of the College are separate. The roles and responsibilities of the Accounting Officer, the Board 

of Governors, and the committee structure, are clearly laid out in the College's scheme of delegation, which is 

reviewed annually by the Board of Governors. 

All Governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the College's 

expense and have access to the Clerk to the Corporation, who is responsible to the board for ensuring that all 

applicable procedures and regulations are complied with. 

The appointment, evaluation and removal of the Clerk are matters for the Board of Governors as a whole. 

Appointments to the Board of Governors 

Under the College's Instrument of Governance the Board of Governors can comprise: 

• up to sixteen independent governors; 
• not more than two governors, who are parents of students under the age of 19 years; 
• the Principal; 
• at least one and not more than three governors who are College staff; and 

• at least two and not more than three governors who are students at the College. 

Any new appointments to the Board of Governors are a matter for the consideration of the Board of Governors as 

a whole. The Board of Governors has a search and governance committee comprising five Governors (including the 

Chair, Vice Chair and the Principal) which is responsible for the selection and nomination of any new member for 

the Board of Governor's consideration .  The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring that appropriate 

training is provided as required. 

Governors of the College are appointed for a term of office not exceeding 4 years and may be re-appointed for 

successive 4 year terms. Where Governors have been in post for more the 8 years, the Board of Governors has 

decided that that it is in the best interests of the College not to follow the recommendation in the Association of 

Colleges Code of Good Governance for English Colleges that the maximum term for Governors should be 8 years. 

Board of Governors performance 

At its annual self-assessment in July 2019, the Board of Governors considered that it was working effectively 

through the current board and committee structure to set the College's strategic targets and to monitor and 

scrutinise progress against financial and quality targets in accordance with its responsibilities. This was borne out 

by the October 2014 'Outstanding' Ofsted report. The College's financial health and management is very 
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effectively monitored through the key committees of finance and personnel and audit; suitably qualified 

Governors and external members are appointed to ensure that appropriate scrutiny takes place. 

Remuneration committee 

In 2019, the College's Remuneration Committee comprised five Governors including the Chair and Vice Chair, but 

excluding the Principal. The Committee's responsibilities are to determine the remuneration and benefits of the 

Principal (Accounting Officer), the Deputy Principal, the Finance Director and the Clerk and to report their 

decisions to the Board. 

Details of remuneration for 2019 are set out in note 6 to the financial statements. 

Audit committee 

The audit committee comprises four Governors (excluding the Accounting Officer and Chair) and one external 

member. The committee operates in accordance with written terms of reference approved by the Board of 

Governors. Its purpose is to advise the Board of Governors on the adequacy and effectiveness of the College's 

system of internal control and its arrangements for risk management, control and governance processes. 

The audit committee meets on a termly basis and provides a forum for reporting by the College's internal and 

financial statement auditors, who have access to the committee for independent discussion, without the presence 

of the college's management. The committee also receives and considers reports from the Education and Skills 

Funding Agency, as they affect the College's business. 

The College's internal auditors review the systems of internal control, risk management controls and governance 

processes in accordance with an agreed plan and report their findings to management and the audit committee. 

Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed recommendations. 

The audit committee also advises the Board of Governors on the appointment of internal and financial statements 

auditors and their remuneration for audit and non-audit work as well as reporting annually to the Board of 

Governors. 

Community education advisory committee 

The community education advisory committee's remit was to seek feedback and advice from the community on the 

learning opportunities the college provided. The Board of Governors decided during the year that the functions of this 

advisory committee could be readily discharged through the academic and standards and quality committee and as a 

consequence the community education advisory committee was disbanded. 
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The Governors who served the Corporation du ring the year and u p  to the date of signature of this report were as  

fol lows: 

Name Date of End of Term of Date of Status of Committees served 
appointment office resignation appointment 

Rob Bennett 11 December 3 1  August I ndependent Audit (Chair)  

(Vice Chair) 2002 2019 Remuneration 

Re-Appointed Search and governance 

28 September 

2018 

Ti m Blake 20 March 2019 24 Apri l  2019 Staff Theatre Board 

Char l ie Bowles 12 December 30 June 2019 Student Academic Standards and 

2018 Qua l ity 

Richard Clark 8 December 3 1  March 2022 Independent Finance and personnel 

1999 Remuneration 

Re-Appointed Theatre board 

1 Apri l  2018 

Charlotte Clarke 20 Februa ry 19 February Staff Academic Standards and 

2019 2023 Quality 

Da le Edwards 28 November 27 November I ndependent 
F&PC 

2018 2022 

Nicola Foster 4 October 31 Ju ly 2019 31 Ju ly 2019 Student Academic Standards and 

2018 Qual ity 

Les ley Gagg 1 September 3 1  August I ndependent Academic Standards and 

2004 2019 Qua l ity 

Re-Appointed Finance and personnel 

1 September Remuneration 

2018 Search and governance 

James Goldring 11 October 3 1  Ju ly 2019 3 1  Ju ly 2019 Student Academic Standards and 

2018 Qual ity 

Soo Hooper 1 September 3 1  Ju ly 2018 3 1  J u ly 2018 Student 
Academic Standards and 

2017 3 October 3 October 
Qua l ity 

2018 2018 

Anthony K ing 1 October 30 September Independent Audit 

2014 2020 

Re-Appointed 

28 September 

2016 

Kate Lovel l  8 December 31 March 2022 Independent Academic standards and 

(Cha i r) 1999 qua l ity 

Re-Appointed Finance and personnel 

1 Apri l 2018 (Chair)  

Search and governance 

Remuneration (Chair) 

Mark Moran 1 September 3 1  August 31 August I ndependent F inance and personnel  

2001 2019 2019 Theatre board (Chair )  

Re-Appointed 

1 September 

2015 

David Mozley 1 October 30 September Independent Audit 

2010 2020 Academic standards and 

Re-Appointed qua l ity (Chair)  

Theatre board 
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Name Date of End of Term of Date of 
appointment office resignation 
28 September 
2016 

Nata l ie Norton- 5 June 2019 4 June 2023 
Ash ley 

Katy Qu inn 5 June 2017 Ongoing 

Paul Reddick 26 Apri l 2017 25 Apri l 2021 30 June 2019 

Kevin Sherrard 30 November 31 December 
2005 2019 
Re-Appointed 
1 January 2016 

Gary Smith 1 September 31 August 31 January 
2015 2021 2019 
Re-Appointed 
1 September 
2017 

Ph i l l ip  Smith 23 November 22 November 16 January 
2017 2021 2019 

*Reappointed on 1 September 2018 for 1 year. 

Tessa M i l ler  a cted as the Clerk to the Corporation throughout the year. 

Attendance at board and committee meetings 

Strode College 

Governors' report and financial statements 

for the year ended 31 July 2019 

Status of Committees served 
appointment 

Staff Theatre Board 

Principa l F inance and personnel 
Academic Standards and 
Quality 
Search and governance 

Independent Academic Standards & 
Qua l ity 

Independent Finance and personnel 

Staff Theatre board 

Staff Academic Standards and 
Qual ity 

Overa l l  attendance at fu l l  board meetings in 2018 /19 was 80% (2017/8 - 75%). Overa l l  attendance at board and 
committee meet ings taken together was 78% (2017/18 - 78.6%). A report deta i l i ng the attendance of individ ua l  
Governors is presented to the  Board of  Governors annua l ly in  J u ly. 

In add it ion to this high level of attendance several Governors a l so regu lar ly attend key committee meetings and 
presentat ions as non-member observers. A l l  Governors partic ipate in tra in ing and other events throughout the 
year. 
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The table below details the attendance by Governors at full Board meetings and committees. 

Name Board of Finance Academic Search and Remuneration Audit Theatre 

Governors and standards governance committee committee board 

personnel and committee 

committee quality 

committee 

Number or 
Meetings in 6 6 3 3 1 5 3 

2018-19 
Rob Bennett 6 6* 2* 3 1 5 

Tim Blake 1/1 

Charlie Bowles 2/2 1/2 

Richard Clark 5 5 1 3 

Charlotte Clarke 3/3 1/2 

Dale Edwards 4/5 4/5 

Nicola Foster 3/4 2/3 

Lesley Gagg 6 4 2 3 1 1* 

James Gold ring 3/4 2/3 

Sue Hooper 1/1 2 

Anthony King 5 2* 4 

Kate Lovell 6 6 3 3 1 

Mark Moran 5 6 3 

David Mozley 6 3 1 3 

Natalie Norton-
1/1 

Ashley 

Katy Quinn 6 6 3 3 1 *  5 *  

Paul Reddick 5 2 

Kevin Sherrard 5 6 

Gary Smith 1/4 1 

Phillip Smith 0/3 1/2 

*in attendance 

Only governors that were in post when meetings occurred in 2018-19 are included in the table above 

Internal control 

Scope of responsibility 

The Board of Governors is ultimately responsible for the College's system of internal control and for reviewing its 

effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve 

business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or 
loss. 

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting Officer, for 

maintaining a sound system of internal control. The system supports the achievement of the College's policies, 

aims and objectives whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which the Principal is personally 

responsible. All of this is undertaken in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to the Principal in the grant 

funding agreements and contracts between the College and the funding bodies. The Principal is also responsible 

for reporting to the Board of Governors any material weaknesses or break-downs in internal control. 
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The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 

assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and 
prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives. It evaluates the likelihood of those 

risks being realised, the impact should they be realised, and endeavours to manage them efficiently, effectively 

and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in the College for the year ended 31 July 2019 

and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. 

Capacity to handle risk 

The Board of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the College is exposed together with the operating, 

financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Governors is 

of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the College's 

significant risks that has been in place for the year ended 31 July 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual 

report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Governors. 

The risk and control framework 

The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, administration 

procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it 

includes: 
• comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and agreed by the Board of 

Governors; 
• regular reviews by the Board of Governors of periodic and annual financial reports which indicate actual and 

forecast financial performance against budgets; 
• setting targets to measure financial and other performance; 
• clearly defined capital investment control guidelines; and 
• the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate. 

The College uses an internal audit service, which operates in accordance with the requirements of the ESFA's Post-

16 Audit Code of Practice. The work of the internal audit service is informed by an analysis of the risks to which the 

College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are based on this analysis. The analysis of risks and the internal 

audit plans are endorsed by the Board of Governors on the recommendation of the audit committee. 

Review of effectiveness 

As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 

control. The Accounting Officer's review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by: 

• the work of the internal auditors; 
• the work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the development and 

maintenance of the internal control framework; and 
• comments made by the College's financial statements and regularity auditors, and the appointed funding 

auditors in their management letters and other reports. 

The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of their review of the effectiveness of the 

system of internal control by the audit committee which oversees the work of the internal auditor, and other 

sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in 
place. 

The College senior management team receives reports setting out key performance and risk indicators and 

considers possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning mechanisms, which are embedded 

within the college and reinforced by risk awareness training. The senior management team and audit committee 

also receive regular reports from internal audit and other sources of assurance, which include recommendations 
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for improvement. The audit committee's role in this area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements 

for internal control. The Board of Governor's agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk and control 

and receives reports thereon from the senior management team and the audit committee. The emphasis is on 

obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by exception. 

The College formally reviews the risk register twice a year with risks reviewed routinely as part of regular meetings. 

Following a benchmarking process with other Colleges and analysis of KPMG's overview of the sector, further work 

will continue in 2019-20 to enhance the risk management processes within the College. 

This is line with the need to continuously evaluate the controls and mitigations used to manage risks and the need 

to regularly gain assurance that the controls and mitigations are effective. 

Based on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Board of Governors is of the opinion 

that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and control, and has 

fulfilled its statutory responsibility for "the effective and efficient use of resources, the solvency of the institution 

and the body and the safeguarding of their assets". 

Going Concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis with the balance sheet showing net current 

liabilities of £370,000. 

The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect our future development and performance are 

set out in the Report of the Board of Governors. The financial position of the College, our cash flow, liquidity and 

borrowings are described in these financial statements and accompanying notes. 

The College currently has £3,655, 298 of loans outstanding with bankers on terms negotiated in 2013. The terms of 
the existing agreement run until 31 July 2021, at which point the loan will need to be renegotiated. The College's 

forecasts and financial projections indicate that we will be able to operate within this existing facility and meet the 

bank's loan covenants for the foreseeable future. 

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that we have adequate resources to continue in operational 

existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason we will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the 

preparation of our financial statements. 

Approved by order of the Board of Governors on 18 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by: 

Kate Lovell 
Chair of Governors 

Katy Quinn 
Accounting Officer 
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The Board of Governors has considered its responsibility to notify the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) 

of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the 

grant funding agreements and contracts in place between the College and the ESFA. As part of our consideration 

we have had due regard to the requirements of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the ESFA. 

We confirm, on behalf of the Board of Governors, that after due enquiry, and to the best of our knowledge, we are 

able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the College, or material non-compliance with 

the ESFA's terms and conditions of funding under the College's grant funding agreements and contracts with the 

ESFA. 

We confirm that, other than the funding non-compliances identified during the ESFA funding audit which have 

been fully corrected, no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been 

discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the 

ESFA. 

Kate Lovell 
Chair of Governors 

18 December 2019 

Katy Quinn 
Accounting Officer 

18 December 2019 
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The Board of Governors, as charity trustees, are required to present audited financial statements for each financial 

year. 

Within the terms and conditions of the grant funding agreements and contracts with the Education and Skills 

Funding Agency (EFSA) the Board of Governors, through its Accounting Officer, is required to prepare financial 

statements for each financial year in accordance with the 2015 Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting 

for Further and Higher Education,  ESFA's College Accounts Direction for 2018 to 2019, and the UK's Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice, and which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College and its 

surplus / deficit of income over expenditure for that period. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently; 
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
• prepare financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume that the college 

will continue in operation. 

The Board of Governors is also required to prepare a Governors' Report which describes what it is trying to do and 

how it is going about it, including the legal and administrative status of the College. 

The Board of Governors is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with reasonable 

accuracy at any time, the financial position of the college and which enable it to ensure that the financial 

statements are prepared in accordance with relevant legislation including the Further and Higher Education Act 

1992 and Charities Act 2011, and relevant accounting standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are 

reasonably open to it to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The Board of Governors is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the college's website; the work carried 

out by auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no 

responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially 

presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of 

financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Governors are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are applied for the purposes intended by 

Parliament and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities that govern them. In addition, they are 

responsible for ensuring that funds from ESFA are used only in accordance with ESFA's grant funding agreements 

and contracts and any other conditions that may be prescribed from time to time. Governors must ensure that 

there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public and other funds and ensure 

they are used properly. In addition, Governors are responsible for securing economical, efficient and effective 

management of the college's resources and expenditure so that the benefits that should be derived from the 

application of public funds from ESFA are not put at risk. 

Approved by order of the Board of Governors on 18 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by: 

,,� 

!tr:1ve/ 1 
Kate Lovell 
Chair of Governor 
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IN DEPEN DENT AU DITOR'S REPORT TO THE CORPORATION OF STRODE COLLEGE 

Opinion 

Strode College 

Governors' report and financial statements 

for the year ended 31 July 2019 

We have audited the financial statements of Strode College ("the College") for the year ended 31 July 2019 which 

comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance 

Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the College's affairs as at 31 July 2019, and of the College's income 

and expenditure, gains and losses and changes in reserves, and of the College's cash flows, for the year then 

ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The Financial 

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, and with the 2015 Statement of 

Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing { U K) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable 

law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are 

independent of the group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. 

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit 

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial statements. 

All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related disclosures and 

the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on 

assessments of the future economic environment and the group's future prospects and performance. 

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the U K, and at the date of this report its effects are subject 

to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We applied a 

standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the Col lege's future prospects and 

performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future 

implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit. 

Going concern 

The Corporation has prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate 

the College or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the College's financial position means that 

this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant 

doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial 
statements ("the going concern period"). 

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is 

inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that 
basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. In our evaluation of the 

Corporation's conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the College's business model, including the impact of 

Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the College's financial resources or ability to continue operations 

over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects. 

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that 

are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a 

material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the College will continue in operation. 
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Other information 
The Corporation is responsible for the other information, which comprises the Report of the Board of Governors and 

the Corporation's statement of corporate governance and internal control. Our opinion on the financial statements 

does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial 

statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements 

or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material misstatements in the other 

i nformation. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
U nder the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice 2018 to 2019 { February 2019) issued by the Education and Skills Funding 

Agency we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the College; or 

• the College's financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

We have nothing to report in these respects. 

Corporation's responsibilities 
As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 24, the Corporation is responsible for: the preparation of 

the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as it 

determin es is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error; assessing the College's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it either intends to liquidate 

the College or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs { U K) 

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at 

www.frc.orq.uk/aud itorsresponsibilit ies. 

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities 
This report is made solely to the Corporation, in accordance with Article 22 of the College's Articles of Government. 

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation those matters we are required to 

state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 

accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the College and the Corporation for our audit work, for this 

report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

' J;;L.1:1-- �....N"" 
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Jonathan Brown 
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants 

66 Queen Square 

Bristol 

BSl 4BE 
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Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to the Corporation of Strode College and the Secretary of State 
for Education acting through the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) 

I n  accordance with the terms of our  engagement letter dated 2 October 2015 and  fu rther  to the requ irements 

and condit ions of fu nd ing in ESFA grant fund ing agreements and  contracts, or  those of any other publ ic  fu nder, 

we have carr ied out an engagement to obta in  l imited assu rance about whether a nyth ing has come to our  

attention that  would suggest that  i n  a l l  materia l  respects the expend iture d isbursed a n d  income received by 

Strode Col lege d u ring the period 1 August 2018 to 31 Ju ly  2019 have not been app l ied to the pu rposes identified 

by Par l iament and  the financia l  t ra nsact ions do not conform to the authorit ies which govern them. 

The fra mework that has been appl ied i s  set out i n  the Post-16 Aud it Code of Practice i ssued by the ESFA. I n  l ine 

with th is  fram ework, our  work has specifica l ly  not considered income received from the ma in  funding grants 

generated through the Ind ividua l ised Learner Record { I LR)  retu rns, for which the ESFA has other assurance 

arrangements in p lace .  

Th is  report is made  so le ly  to the corporation of Strode Col lege and  the ESFA in  accordance with the terms of our  

engagement letter. Our work has been u ndertaken so that  we m ight state to  the  corporation of  Strode Col lege 

and the ESFA those matters we are req u i red to state in a report and  for no other pu rpose. To the fu l lest extent 

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respons ib i l ity to a nyone other than the corporation of Strode 

Col lege and the ESFA for our work, for this report, or  for the conclus ion we have formed.  

Respective responsibilities of Strode College and the reporting accountant 

The corporation of Strode Col lege is respons ib le, u nder the requ i rements of the Further & Higher Education Act 

1992, su bseq uent l egis lat ion and  related regu lat ions and gu idance, for ensuring that expenditure d isbursed and 

income received i s  appl ied for  the pu rposes i ntended by Par l iament and  the financi a l  transactions conform to 

the authorit ies which govern them. 

Our respons ib i l it ies for this engagement are estab l ished i n  the Un ited K ingdom by o u r  profession's ethical  

gu idance and are to obta i n  l imited assurance and report i n  accordance with our engagement letter and the 

requ i rements of the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice. We report to you whether a nything has come to our 

attention i n  ca rryi ng out our work which suggests that in  al l  materia l  respects, expenditure d isbursed and i ncome 

received d u ring the period 1 August 2018 to 3 1  J u ly 2019 h ave not been app l ied to purposes i ntended by 

Par l ia ment o r  that the fi nancia l  transact ions do  not conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Approach 

We conducted o u r  engagement in a ccordance with the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice issued by the ESFA. We 

performed a l imited assurance engagement as defined in that fra mework. 

The objective of a l im ited assurance engagement is to perform such procedu res as to obta in  information and  

explanations i n  o rder to  provide  us w i th  sufficient appropriate evidence to  express a n egative conclus ion on 

regu la rity. 

A l im ited assurance engagement is more l im ited in scope than a reasonab le  assurance engagement and  

conseq uently does not enable us to  obtain assurance that  we would become aware of  a l l  s ign ificant matters that 

might be identified in  a reasonab le assurance engagement.  Accordingly, we do not express a posit ive op in ion .  

Our engagement inc ludes exa mination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regu la rity of the col lege's 

income and expend iture. 
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The work undertaken to draw our conclusion included: 

• Documenting the framework of authorities which govern the activities of the College; 
• Undertaking a risk assessment based on our understanding of the general control environment 

and any weaknesses in internal controls identified by our audit of the financial statements; 
• Reviewing the self-assessment questionnaire which supports the representations included in the 

Chair of Governors and Accounting Officer's statement on regularity, propriety and compliance 

with the framework of authorities; 
• Testing transactions with related parties; 
• Confirming through enquiry and sample testing that the College has complied with its 

procurement policies and that these policies comply with delegated authorities; and 
• Reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whether it was 

significant enough to be referred to in our regularity report. 

This list is not exhaustive and we performed additional procedures designed to provide us with sufficient 

appropriate evidence to express a limited assurance conclusion on regularity consistent with the requirements 

of the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice. 

Conclusion 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the 

expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2019 has not been 

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities 

which govern them. 

Jcv,,:-1 .... l:l.v, �c..,,.,,vA 

Jonathan Brown 
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Reporting Accountant 
66 Queen Square 

Bristol 

B51 4BE 

28 



Statement of Comprehensive Income 

for the year ended 31 July 2019 

Income 
Funding body grants 

Tuition fees and education contracts 

Other income 

Investment income 

Total income 

Expenditure 
Staff costs 

Other operating expenses 

Depreciation 

Interest and other finance costs 

Total expenditure 

(Deficit) on continuing operations before tax 

Taxation 

(Deficit) on continuing operations after tax 

Actuar ia l  { loss)/ga in  in respect of pensions schemes 

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 

Strode College 

Governors' report and financial statements 
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Note 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6.2 
7 
10 
8 

9 

18.3.5 

2019 

£'000 

10,906 
1,886 
1,435 

2 

14,229 

8,320 
5,424 

700 
312 

14,756 

{527) 

(527) 

(502) 

(1,029) 

2018 

£'000 

10,060 
1,546 
1,621 

13,227 

8,547 
4,573 

717 
364 

14, 201 

{974) 

{974) 

2,205 

1,23 1 

The notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements 
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Statement of Changes in Reserves 

General Net pension Revaluation Total 
reserve scheme reserve 

liabilities 

reserve 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Balance at 1 August 2017 10,698 {9,456) 858 2,100 

(Deficit) on continuing operations after tax ( 147) {827) (974) 
Other comprehensive income 2,205 2,205 
Transfers between revaluation and general 

reserve 17 ( 17) 

( 130) 1,378 (17 )  1,231 

Balance at 31 July 2018 10,568 {8,078 ) 841 3,331 

Surplus/(Deficit) on continuing operations 138 (667) (529) 
after tax 

Other comprehensive income (502) (502) 
Transfers between revaluation and general 

reserve 17 { 17) 

155 { 1, 169) { 17 )  (1,031) 

Balance at 31 July 2019 10,723 {9,247) 824 2,300 

The notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements 
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Balance Sheet as at 31 July 2019 

Non-current assets 
Tangible assets 

Current assets 
Inventory 

Trade and other receivables 

Cash 

Less: Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 

Net current {liabilities) 

Total assets less current liabilities 

Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 

Net assets excluding net pension scheme liabilities 

Net pension scheme liabilities 

Total net assets 

Unrestricted reserves 
Revaluation reserve 

General reserve excluding net pension scheme liabilities 

Net pension scheme liabilities reserve 

Total unrestricted reserves 
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Note 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

18.3.6 

2019 
£'000 

15,310 

19 
1,083 
1,130 

2,232 

(2,602) 

{370} 

14,940 

(3,393) 

11,547 

(9,247} 

2,300 

824 
10,723 
(9,247} 

2,300 

2018 

£'000 

15,840 

16 

506 

1,032 

1,554 

{2,330} 

{776} 

15,064 

{3,655} 

11,409 

{8,078} 

3,331 

841 

10,568 

{8,078} 

3,331 

The financial statements on pages 28 to 54 were approved by the Board of Governors on 18 December 2019 and 

were signed on its behalf by: 

Kate Lovell 
Chair 

The notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

Cash flow from operating activities 
(Deficit) for the year 

Adjustment for non-cash items 
Depreciation 

Loss on disposal of assets 

(lncrease)/decrease in inventory 

( lncrease)/decrease in debtors 

Increase in creditors due within one year 

Pensions scheme costs less contributions payable 

Adjustment for investing or financing activities 
Investment income 

Interest payable 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Investment income 

Payments made to acquire fixed assets 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Interest paid 

Interest element of finance lease rental payments 

New finance Leases 

Repayments of amounts borrowed 

Capital element of finance lease rental payments 

lncrease/(decrease) in cash in the year 

Cash at beginning of the year 

Cash at the end of the year 

Strode College 
Governors' report and financial statements 

For the year ended 31 July 2019 

Notes 2019 2018 
£'000 

12 

12  

£'000 

(529) 

700 

(3) 
(577) 

334 
459 

(2) 
312 

694 

2 
{170) 

(168) 

(102) 
(2) 

(255) 
{69) 

(428) 

98 

(974) 

717 

2 

(248) 

389 

579 

364 

829 

(375 ) 

(375 ) 

( 110)  
(6 )  

(248) 

(104) 

(468) 

(14) 

The notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements 
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1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques 
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The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered 

material in relation to these financial statements. 

Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice: 

Accounting for Fu rther and Higher Education 2015 (the 2015 FE HE SORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2018 

to 2019 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in 

the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland" (FRS 102). The College is a public benefit entity and has therefore 

applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102. 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting 

estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the College's accounting policies 

Basis of accounting 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention except for the revaluation 

of certain non-current assets. 

Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis with the balance sheet showing net cu rrent 

liabilities of £370,000. 

The activities of the College, together with the factors li kely to affect our  futu re development and performance are 

set out in the Report of the Board of Governors. The financial position of the College, our cash flow, liquidity and 

borrowings are described in these financial statements and accompanying notes. 

The College currently has £3,394,000 of loans outstanding with bankers on terms negotiated in 2013. The terms of 

the existing agreement run until 31 July 2021, at which point the loan will need to be renegotiated. The College's 

forecasts and financial projections indicate that we will be able to operate within this existing facility and meet the 

bank's loan covenants for the foreseeable futu re. 

Accordingly, the College has a reasonable expectation that we have adequate resources to continue in operational 

existence for the foreseeable futu re, and for this reason we will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the 

preparation of our financial statements. 

Recognition of income 

Funding body grants 
Funding body grants are accounted for under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Education and Skills 

Funding Agency (ESFA) grants in respect of adult education and apprenticeships are recognised in the statement of 

comprehensive income in line with best estimates of what is receivable for the period. The final grant income is 

normally determined with the conclusion of a year end reconciliation process with the ESFA following the year 

end, and the results of any funding audits. 

The grants from the ESFA for 16-18 education and the Higher Education Funding Council represent the funding 

allocations attributable to the cu rrent financial year and are credited directly to the statement of comprehensive 

income. 
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Grants (including research grants and capital grants) from government sources are recognised in income when the 

College is entitled to the income and any performance related conditions have been met. Income received in 

advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the 

balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are met. 

Tuition fees and education contracts 

Income from tuition fees, grants, contracts and other services rendered is recognised to the extent the conditions 

of the funding have been met or to the extent of the completion of the contract or service concerned. 

Capital grants 

Capital grants from non-government sources are recognised as income when the College is entitled to the funds 

subject to any performance related conditions being met. 

Other income 

Other income is recognised to the extent the conditions of the funding have been met or to the extent of the 

completion of the contract or service concerned. 

Investment income 

All income from short-term deposits is credited to the statement of comprehensive income account in the period 

in which it is earned on a receivable basis. 

Agency arrangements 

Where the College receives and disburses funds in which we have no direct beneficial interest, such funds are 

excluded from the statement of comprehensive income account on the grounds that the College does not have 

direct control over the future economic benefits derived from these funds. The College has applied this policy to 

certain funds received during the year from the ESFA (see note 20). 

Accounting for pension benefits 

Pension benefits for employees of the College are principally provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme {TPS) and 

the Local Government Pension Scheme {LGPS). These are defined benefit pension schemes, which are externally 

funded and until 1 April 2016 were contracted out of the State Second Pension. 

Teachers' Pension Scheme {TPS) 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over 

employees' working lives with the College in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of 

current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of 

valuations using a prospective benefit method. 

The TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme and the College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets 

and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined 

contribution pension scheme and the contributions recognised as an expense in the income statement in the 

periods during which services are rendered by employees. 

Somerset and Devon Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS} 

The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. LGPS liabilities are 

measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality 

corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. Actuarial valuations are obtained at least 

triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to statement of comprehensive 

income are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and 

curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. 

The interest cost on the net pension scheme liabilities is also recognised in the statement of comprehensive 

income and comprises the interest cost on the pension scheme liability and interest income on the pension 

scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the 

rate used to discount the scheme liabilities. 
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Actuar ia l  ga ins  and losses are recognised immediately in statement of comprehensive income. 

Fu rther  detai ls of the pens ion schemes are given in  note 18. 

Holiday pay 

Ho l iday pay is recognised as a n  expense in the year in which the employees render service to the College. Any 

u n used ho l iday is accrued and measu red as the addit iona l  a mount the Col lege expects to pay as a result  of the 

u n used entit lement. 

Non-current assets 

Tangib le fixed assets a re stated at cost or, where the assets were reva lued to fa i r  va lue prior to the date of 

transit ion to the 2015 FE  HE SORP, the reva lued a mount less accu mulated depreciation and accu mu lated 

impa irment losses. 

A review for impa i rment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or  changes in circu mstances ind icate that the 

carrying a mount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable .  

Land and buildings 
On adoption of FRS 102, the Col lege fol lowed the transit iona l  provis ion to reta in the book va lue of land and 

bu i ld ings, which were reva lu ed i n  1994, as deemed cost but not  to  adopt a pol icy of  reva l uations of  these 

properties in  the future. 

The Col lege appl ies the fol lowing depreciat ion pol icy to land and bu i ld ings : 

• Freehold land is not depreciated . 

• Freehold bu i ld ings a re depreciated over their expected usefu l economic  l ife to the Col lege of 50 years. 

Leasehold land and bu i ld ings are amortised over SO yea rs or, if  shorter, the period of the lease. 

• The Co l l ege has a pol icy of depreciat ing major adaptations to bu i ld ings over the period of their useful 

economic l ife. 

Finance costs 
F ina nce costs which are d i rect ly attributable to the construction of land and bu i ld ings are not capital ised as part of 

the cost of those assets. 

Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets 
Where sign ifica nt expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets it is charged to the statement of comprehensive 

income account in the period it is incu rred, u n less it meets one of the fol lowing criteria, i n  which case it is  

capita l ised and depreciated o n  the relevant basis :  

• M a rket va lue of the fixed asset has subsequently i mproved 

• Assets capacity increases 

• Su bstant ia l  improvement i n  the qua l ity of output or reduction in operating costs 

• Significant extension of the assets l ife beyond that conferred by repa i rs and ma intenance 

Buildings owned by third parties 
Where land and bu i ld ings a re used, but the legal rights a re held by a th i rd party, they are only capital ised if the 

Col lege has  rights or  access to ongoing future economic benefit. These assets are then depreciated over their 

expected usefu l economic l ife . 

Assets under construction 
Assets u nder construction a re accou nted for at cost, based o n  the va lue of arch itects' certificates and other d i rect 

costs, i ncu rred to 31 Ju ly. They are not depreciated unt i l  they are brought into use. 
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Equipment costing less than £1,000 is treated as expenditure in the period of acquisition. All other equipment is 

capitalised at cost. 

Equipment is depreciated on a straight line basis over its remaining useful economic life as follows: 

Motor vehicles and general equipment 

Computer equipment 

Furniture and fittings 

Longer life fixtures and fittings 

Leased assets 

5 years 

3-5 years 

5 years 

10 years 

Costs in respect of operating leases a re cha rged on a stra ight line basis over the lease term to the statement of 

comprehensive income. 

Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership of an asset 

are treated as finance leases. 

Assets held under finance leases a re recognised initially at the fa i r  value of the leased asset (or, if lower, the 

present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is 

included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Assets held under finance leases a re included in 

tangible fixed assets and depreciated and assessed for impa i rment losses in the same way as owned assets. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding 

liability. The finance charges a re allocated over the period of the lease in proportion to the capital element 

outstanding. 

Inventory 

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value, where net realisable value equals selling price less 

costs to complete and sell. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventory. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand if they 

a re in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. 

Cash equivalents a re short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 

insignificant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies as a cash equivalent when it has maturity of 3 months or 

less from the date of acquisition. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities a re classified according to the substance of the financial instrument's contractual obligations, 

rather than the financial instrument's legal form. 

The loan held by the College is classified as a basic financial instrument in accordance with FRS 102. This 

instrument is initially recorded at the transaction price less any transaction costs {historical cost). FRS 102 requires 

that basic financial instruments a re subsequently measured at amortised cost; however the College has calculated 

that the difference between the historical cost and amortised cost basis is not material and so these financial 

instruments a re stated on the balance sheet at historical cost. 

Loans and investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted. 
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Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the 

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of 

exchange ruling at the end of the financial year with all resulting exchange differences being taken to the 

statement of comprehensive income account in the period in which they arise. 

Taxation 

The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore 

meets the definition of a charitable company for U K  corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is 

potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by 

Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to 

the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. 

The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax (VAT), meaning we can only recover a small 

proportion of VAT charged on goods and services we purchase. Irrecoverable VAT is included in expenditure or 

added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate. 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Agency arrangements 

The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of discretionary support funds, bursary funds, and 

grants for free school meals. Related payments received from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students 

are excluded from the statement of comprehensive income and are shown separately in note 20 except for 5 per 

cent of the grants received which is available to the College to cover administration costs. The College employs one 

member of staff dedicated to the administration of bursary funds applications and payments. 

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing these financial statements, the Accounting Officer has made the following judgements: 

• Determining whether leases entered into by the College as a lessee are operating or finance leases. These 

decisions depend on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred 

from the lessor to the lessee on a lease by lease basis. 
• Determining whether there are indicators of impairment of the College's tangible assets. Factors taken 

into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability and expected future financial 

performance of the asset and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and 

expected future performance of that unit. 

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

• Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual values, where 

appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending 

on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance 

programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market 

conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values. 
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The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit pension liability depends on a 
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions 

used in determining the net cost/income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these 

assumptions, which are disclosed in note 18, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. 

Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed 

at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 July 2018. Any 

differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would 

impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. 

2. Funding body grants 

2019 2018 

£'000 £'000 

ESFA - Adult Education 3,433 2,467 

ESFA - 16-18 Education 6,653 6,6S3 

ESFA - Apprenticeships 675 810 

Higher Education Grant 65 58 

Somerset County Council Grant 80 72 

10,906 10,060 

3 .  Tuition fees and education contracts 
2019 2018 

£'000 £'000 

Enrichment course fees 110 119 

Apprenticeship fees 418 138 

Further Education Fees 539 642 

Higher Education Fees 819 647 

Education contracts 

1,886 1,546 

4. Other income 
2019 2018 

£'000 £'000 

Catering 534 485 

Other income generating activities 573 587 

Other grant income 30 15 

Non-government capital grants received 2 145 

Other income 296 389 

1,435 1,621 
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5. Investment income 

Other interest receivable 

6. Staff numbers and costs 

6.1. Staff numbers 
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2019 
£'000 

2 

2018 

£'000 

The average number and the full time equivalent of persons employed by the College {including key management 

personnel) during the year, was as follows: 

Teaching staff 

Teaching support staff 

Administration and operational staff 

6.2 .  Staff costs 

Staff costs for the above persons were as follows: 

Wages and salaries 

Social security costs 

Other pension costs 

Restructuring costs - contractual 

Restructuring costs - non contractual 

Total staff costs 

39 

Full Time Equivalent 
2019 2018 

99 
35 
79 

213 

2019 
£000 

6,274 
510 

1,459 
42 
35 

8,320 

99 

38 

85 

222 

2018 

£000 

6,326 
534 

1,637 
so 

8,547 



6.3. Key management personnel 
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Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 

controlling the activities of the College. At the College this comprises the Executive Management Team which 

includes the Principal and CEO (who also holds the role of Accounting Officer), the Deputy Principal and the Vice 

Principal of Finance and Resources. 

The number of key management personnel including the Accounting Officer 

was: 

2019 
Number 

6* 

2018 

Number 

4* 

In both 2018 and 2019 key management personnel left the college and were replaced. The College typically 

operates with 3 key managers and in both 2018 and 2019, with the exception of 2 weeks in July 2019 and 4 weeks 

in August 2018, only 3 key managers were in post at any time. 

The table below indicates the ranges of the annual rate of emoluments of key management personnel. The annual 

rate of emoluments includes annual salary and benefits in kind but excludes pension contributions. 

The annual rate of emoluments is the salary that would be paid and any benefits in kind that would be provided to 

key management personnel if they were in post throughout the whole financial year. This does not equate to the 

salary paid and any benefits in kind provided to key management personnel that left or joined the College during 

the year. 
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6.3 Key management personne l  contin ued 

Key management Other staff 
personnel 
2019 2018 2019 2018 

No. No. No. No. 
£0 to £5,000 p .a .  
£5,001 to £ 10,000 p.a .  
£ 10,001 to £ 15,000 p.a .  
£ 15,001 to £20,000 p .a .  
£20,001 to £25,000 p .a .  
£25,001 to £30,000 p .a .  
£30,001 to £35,000 p .a .  
£35,001 to £40,000 p.a .  
£40,001 to £45,000 p .a .  
£45,001 to £50,000 p.a .  
£50,001 to £55,000 p .a .  1 1 
£55,001 to £60,000 p .a .  
£60,001 to £65,000 p .a .  
£65,001 to £70,000 p .a .  
£70,001 to £75,000 p .a .  1 *  
£75,001 to £80,000 p.a . S * *  2 *  
£80,001 t o  £85,000 p .a .  
£85,001 to £90,000 p .a .  
£90,001 to  £95,000 p .a .  
£95,001 to  £ 100,000 p .a .  
£ 100,001 to  £ 105,000 p.a .  
£ 105,001 to £ 110,000 p.a .  
£ 110,001 to £ 1 15,000 p .a .  1 1 

6 4 1 1 

* Sh i r ley Theedom, the Col lege's Deputy Principal , left the Col lege i n  August 2018 and was replaced by Al i son 
Leaver land who sta rted i n  June 2018. 

** David Hea ley, the Co l lege's F inance Di rector, left the Col l ege in March 2019 and was replaced by David Rose. 
David Rose started as I nterim F ina nce Di rector in Apri l  2019 a nd left the Co l lege in July 2019. 
Paul Davies sta rted as Vice Pri nc ipa l  of F inance and Resou rces in J u ly 2019. 
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Key management personnel remuneration is made up as follows: 

Salaries 

Employers national insurance 

Relocation costs 

Total excluding pension contributions 

Pension contributions 

Total key management personnel remuneration 
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2019 

£'000 

311 
39 

350 

40 

390 

2018 

£'000 

278 

35 

313  

46 

359 

There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor any salary sacrifice 

arrangements in place. 

The above remuneration includes amounts payable to the Accounting Officer during 2017-18 and 2018-19 of: 

Katy Quinn 

Salary 

2019 
£'000 

2018 

£'000 

111 1 1 1  

Benefits in kind - relocation costs 

111 1 1 1  

Pension contributions 18 18 

Katy Quinn was the highest paid officer in 2019 and 2018. 

The basic salary of the accounting officer is 4.0 times the median pay for all other staff and total emoluments are 
4.25 times the median total emoluments for all other staff. 

The members of the Corporation other than the Accounting Officer and the staff member did not receive any 

payment from the institution other than the reimbursement of travel and subsistence expenses incurred in the 

course of their duties. 

The governing body has adopted AoC's Senior Staff Remuneration Code in July 2019 and will assess pay in line with 

its principles in future. 

The remuneration package of Key management staff, including the Principal and Chief Executive, is subject to 

annual review by the Remuneration Committee of the governing body who use benchmarking information to 

provide objective guidance. 

The Principal and Chief Executive reports to the Chair of Governing Council, who undertakes an annual review of 

her performance against the college's overall objectives using both qualitative and quantitative measures of 

performance.  
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Relationship of Principal/Chief Executive pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple 

2019 
£'000 

Principal's basic salary as a multiple of the median of all staff 4.00 

Principal and CEO's total remuneration as a multiple of the median of all 4.25 

staff 

6.4. Compensation for loss of office paid to 1 former key management personnel 

Compensation paid to the former post-holder 

2019 
£'000 
25 

The severance payment was approved by the College's Chair and Vice Chair of Governors. 

7. Other operating expenses 
2019 
£'000 

Premises costs 367 
Subcontracted provision 3,058 
Direct and other costs 1,532 
Other staff related costs 117 
Overheads 350 

5,424 

Other operating expenses include: 

Loss on disposal of assets 

Asset useful life correction charge 

External auditors remuneration: financial statements audit 21 
Internal auditors remuneration: internal audit 10 

43 

2018 

£'000 

385 

2,088 

1,653 

106 

341 

4,573 

21 

6 



8.  Interest and other finance costs 

On bank loans 

On finance leases 

Net interest cost on defined benefit pension liabilities 

9. Taxation 
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2019 

£'000 

102 

2 

208 

312 

2018 

£'000 

110 

6 

248 

364 

The Governors do not believe the College was liable for any corporation tax a rising out of its activities during either 

period. 
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10. Tangible fixed assets 

Land and Equipment WIP Total 
Buildings 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost or valuation 
At 1 August 2018 25,325 2214 27,539 

Additions 142 28 170 

At 31 July 2019 25,325 2,356 28 27,709 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 August 2018 10,286 1,413 11,699 

Charge for year 454 246 700 

At 31 July 2019 10,740 1,659 12,399 

Net book value 
At 31 July 2019 14,585 697 28 15,310 

At 31 July 2018 15,039 801 15,840 

Land and buildings were valued for the purpose of the 1994 financial statements at depreciated replacement cost 

by a firm of i ndependent chartered surveyors, in accordance with the RICS Statement of Asset Valuation Practice 

and Guidance notes. Other tangible fixed assets inherited from the local education authority at incorporation have 

been valued by the College on a depreciated replacement cost basis with the assistance of independent 

professional advice. 

Land and buildings with a net book value of £4,827,000 { 2018 - £4,976,000) have been partly f inanced from 

exchequer funds, through for example the receipt of capital grants. Should these assets be sold, the College may 

be liable, under the terms and conditions of funding with the Education and Skills Funding Agency, to surrender 

the proceeds. 

11. Trade and other receivables : falling due within one year 
2019 2018 

£'000 £'000 

Trade receivables 142 286 

Prepayments and accrued income 253 128 

Amounts owed by the Education and Skills Funding Agency 688 92 

1,083 506 
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12.  Cash 

Cash 

The college held no cash equivalents during 2019 { 2018 £nil). 

13.  Creditors: amounts fal l ing due within one year 

Bank loans and overdrafts 

Obligations under finance leases 

Trade creditors 

Other taxation and social security 

Accruals and deferred income 

Staff holiday pay accrual { FRS102 adjustment) 

Amounts owed to the Education and Skills Funding Agency 

Other creditors 

14. Creditors: amounts fa l l ing due after more than one year 

Bank loans 

Obligations under finance leases 

15.  Analysis of borrowings 

Bank loans 

Bank loans are repayable as follows: 

In the next year 

Between one and two years 

Between two and five years 

In five years or more 
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At 1 August 

2018 

£'000 

1,032 

Cash flows 

£'000 

98 

2019 

£'000 

262 

154 

134 

1,489 

447 

116 

2,602 

2019 

£'000 

3,393 

3,393 

2019 

£'000 

262 

269 

1,026 

2,098 

3,655 

At 31 July 

2019 

£'000 

1,130 

2018 

£'000 

255 

69 

136 

140 

1064 

428 

117 

121 

2,330 

2018 

£'000 

3,655 

3,655 

2018 

£'000 

255 

262 

3,393 

3,910 
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The borrowings of the Col lege have been used to fu nd  previous capita l  i nvestment progra mmes. The borrowings 

comprise a term loan of £3,394,000 repaya ble i n  quarterly i nsta l ments.  The fi na l  repayment i s  31 J u ly 202 1 .  The 

Col lege w i l l  need to refinance this borrowing by 31 Ju ly  202 1 .  

On t h e  10th October 2016 t h e  Col lege entered into a fi xed i nterest rate agreement i n  respect o f  t h e  amount  owed 

to Lloyds Ban k, at that date, of £4,276,000 for a period of 4.  75  yea rs at an  i nterest rate to 2 .69%. 

The loan i s  s ecu red via a negative p ledge, which means the col lege ca n not provide  security to any other lender 

without the consent of the Co l lege's ba n kers. 

The Col lege had no  overdraft i n  2019 {2018 - £n i l ) .  

Finance leases 

The net fi nance lease obl igat ions to which the Col lege is committed a re :  

I n  t h e  next year 

Between one and five years 

2019 

£'000 

2018 

£'000 

69 

69 

F inance lease ob l igat ions are secured on  the assets to which they relate a n d  are a l l  repayable within 5 years.  

16. Capital commitments 

Com mitments contracted for at 3 1  Ju ly 

17. Lease obligations 

2019 

£'000 

0 

2018 

£'000 

23 

At 31 Ju ly  the Col lege had future m in imum lease payments due u nder non-cance l lab le  operating leases a s  fol lows : 

2019 

£'000 

2018 

£'000 

Land and buildings 
I n  the next yea r 

Later than  one year and not later than  five yea rs 

The Col lege's on ly  bu i ld ing lease was term inated 

on  22  September 2018. 

1 

1 
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18. Defined benefit pension scheme 
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The College's employees belong to two principal pension plans: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales 

(TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Devon and Somerset Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for 

non-teaching staff. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit pension schemes. 

18.1. Total pension cost for the year 

TPS contributions payable 

LGPS: 

Regular contributions paid 

Additional contributions paid 

Service cost excluding contributions paid 

Net interest cost on the defined benefit pension 

liability 

Administration expenses 

LGPS cost charged to the statement of comprehensive 

income 

Total pension cost for the year charged to the 

statement of comprehensive income 

393 

78 

446 

208 

14 

2019 

£'000 

533 

1,139 

1,672 

422 

76 

566 

248 

13 

2018 

£'000 

558 

1,325 

1,883 

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest formal 

actuarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016. 

Contributions amounting to £114,000 { 2018 - £120,000) were payable to the two schemes at 31st July and are 

included within creditors. 

18.2. Teachers' Pension Scheme 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme {TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit pension scheme, governed by the 

Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 a nd Teachers' Pension Scheme Regu lat ions 2014. These regulations 

apply to teachers in schools and other educational establishments. Membership is automatic for teachers and 

lecturers. Teachers and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS. 

The Teachers' Pension budgeting and valuation account 

Although members of the TPS may be employed by various bodies, their retirement and other pension benefits are 

set out in regulations made under the Superannuation Act 1972 and are paid by public funds provided by 
Parliament. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis. These 

contributions, along with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed 

by the above Act. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. 

The Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 require an annual account, the Teachers' Pension budgeting and 

valuation account, to be kept of receipts and expenditure (including the cost of pension increases) . From 
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1 April 2001, the account has been credited with a real rate of return, which is equivalent to assuming that the 

balance in the account is invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of return. 

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme 

The latest actuarial review of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with The Public 

Service Pensions {Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by the 

Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key results of the valuation a re: 

• employer contribution rates were set at 16.48% of pensionable pay; 

• total scheme liabilities for service to the effective date of £191.5 billion, and notional assets of £176.6 billion, 

giving a notional past service deficit of £14.9 billion; 

• an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay; 

• the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of ea rnings. The rate of real 

ea rnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%. 

The new employer contribution rate for the TPS was implemented in September 2015. The next valuation of the 

TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be 

reassessed and will be payable from 1 April 2019. 

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the Teachers' Pension Scheme 

website at the following location: https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2016/06/publication­
of-the-valuation-report.aspx 

FRS 102 (28) 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11}, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The College is unable 

to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the pension scheme. 

Accordingly, the College has ta ken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions 

to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution pension scheme. The College has set out above the information 

available on the pension scheme and the implications for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution 

rates. 

The College's contributions payable to the TPS in 2019 amounted to £533,000 (2018 - £558,000}. 

18.3. Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a contributory, funded, defined-benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate funds 

administered by Peninsular Pensions (part of Devon and Somerset County Councils}. The total contribution in 2019 

was £543,000 {2018 - £583,000} of which employee's contributions totalled £150,000 {2018 - £162,000} and 

employers' contributions totalled £393,000 {2018 - £422,000}. The agreed employer contribution rate for future 

years is 16.2%. 
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18.3.1. Principal actuarial assumptions 
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The following information is based on a full actuarial valuation of the fund as at 31st March 2016 updated to 31st 

July 2019 by a qualified independent actuary. 

Inflation assumption (CPI} 

Rate of increase in salaries 

Rate of increase in pensions 

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 

Commutation of pensions to lump sums 

2019 
2.10 
3.35 
2.35 
2.10 
50% 

2018 

2.65 

3.35 

2.35 

2.65 

50% 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The 

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

Retiring today 

Males 

Females 

Retiring in 20 years 

Males 

Females 

18.3.2. LGPS assets and liabilities 

The assets and liabilities in the pension scheme were: 

Equity instruments 

Debt instruments 

Property 

Cash 

Gilts 

Total fair value of pension scheme assets 

Actual return on pension scheme assets 

The expected rates of return were: 

Expected rate of return 

50 

At 31 July At 31 July 

2019 2018 

22.9 24.0 

24.0 25.2 

24.6 26.3 

25.8 27 .5 

2019 2018 

£'000 £'000 

12,162 11,612 

1,556 1,458 

1,439 1,405 

1,052 877 

1,032 868 

17,241 16,220 

966 1,153 

2019 2018 

2.10% 2.65% 
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The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the pension scheme is as follows: 

Fair value of pension scheme assets 

Present value of pension scheme liabilities 

Net pension scheme (liability) 

18.3.3. Amounts included in staff costs 

2019 
£'000 

17,241 
(26,488) 

(9,247) 

2018 

£'000 

16,220 

(24,298} 

(8,078) 

Amounts recogn ised in the statement of comprehensive income in respect of the pension scheme are as follows: 

Current service cost 

18.3.4. Amounts included in interest and other finance costs 

Interest cost on pension scheme net liabilities 

18.3.5. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income 

Return on pension scheme assets 

Other actuarial gains on pension scheme assets* 

Experience gains arising on pension scheme liabilities 

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the pension scheme 

liabilities 

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 

2019 
£'000 

917 

2019 
£'000 

(208) 

2019 
£'000 

535 

(1,037) 

(502) 

2018 

£'000 

1,064 

2018 

£'000 

(248) 

2018 

£'000 

749 

1,456 

2,205 

*The accou nting results have been updated to be rolled forward from the results of the 2016 valuation of the 

pension scheme rather than continuing a roll forward from the results of the 2013 valuation. The other actuarial 

gains figure shown in the table above includes the effect of this change in approach. 

The college was previously pooled with other college employers in the pension scheme in order to share 

experience of risks they were exposed to in the pension scheme. At the 2016 valuation, it was agreed that the 

colleges pool would be disbanded, and each college employer would be responsible for their own pensions 
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liabilities and risks. The pool was disbanded in a way such that each college employer would be paying a similar 

level of deficit contribution. As a result of the disbandment, the College was allocated a bigger share of the pool's 

assets than it had been given previously in order to maintain a similar level of deficit contribution to the other 

colleges and this is the main source of the other actuarial gains figure shown above. Other effecting factors 

includes updates to the estimated cash flows and asset returns that were used in previous roll forwards but the 

effect of these is less significant. 

18.3.6. Movement in net pension scheme liability during the year 

Pension scheme net liability at 1 August 

Movement in year: 

Current service cost 

Employer contributions 

Interest cost on pension scheme net liabilities 

Administration expenses 

Actuarial {loss)/gain 

Pension scheme net liability at 31 July 

18.3.7. Asset and liability reconciliation 

Changes in the present value of pension scheme liabilities 

Pension scheme liability at 1 August 
Service cost 

Interest on pension scheme liabilties 

Contributions by scheme participants 

Experience {losses) on pension scheme liabilities 

Changes in financial assumptions 

Changes in demographic assumptions 

Estimated benefits paid 

Pension scheme liability at 31 July 

52 

2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

(8,078) {9,456) 

(917) { 1,064} 
472 498 

(208) {248) 
(14) ( 13)  

(502) 2,205 

(9,247) {8,078) 

2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

24,298 24,269 
917 1,064 
639 652 
150 162 

1,037 { 1,456) 

(553) {393} 

26,488 24, 298 



Changes in fair value of pension scheme assets 

Fair value of pension scheme assets at start of period 
Interest on pension scheme assets 

Return on pension scheme assets 

Other actuarial gains/{losses) 

Employer contributions 

Contributions by scheme participants 

Estimated benefits paid 

Administration expenses 

Fair value of pension scheme assets at end of period 

18.3.8. Deficit contributions 
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2019 2018 

£'000 £'000 

16,220 14,813 

431 404 

535 749 

472 498 

150 162 

(553) {393) 

(14) {13) 

17,241 16,220 

The College has entered into an agreement with the LGPS to make additional contributions. Contributions started 

at £76,000 per annum in 2017, and rise annually. 2019 contributions were £78,000. This is in addition to regular 

contributions. At the next full valuation the deficit contributions will be reviewed again. 

18.3.9. Guaranteed minimum pension benefits 

On 26 October 2017, the High Court handed down a judgment involving the Lloyds Banking Group's defined 

benefit pension schemes. The judgment concluded the schemes should be amended to equalise pension benefits 

for men and women in relation to guaranteed minimum pension benefits, {GMP). 

On 22 January 2018, the Government published the outcome to its Indexation and equalisation of GMP in public 

service pension schemes consultation, concluding that the requirement for public service pension schemes to fully 

price protect the GMP element of individuals' public service pension would be extended to those individuals 

reaching State Pension Age {SPA) before 6 April 2021. HM Treasury published a Ministerial Direction on 4 

December 2018 to implement this outcome, with effect from 6 April 2016. 

The valuation assumption for GMP is that the Fund will pay limited increases for members that have reached SPA 

by 6 April 2016, with the Government providing the remainder of the inflationary increase. For members that 

reach SPA after this date, it is assumed that the Fund will be required to pay the entire inflationary increase. 

Therefore, the actuaries do not believe any adjustment is needed to the value placed on the liabilities as a result of 

the above outcome. 

19. Related party transactions 

Due to the nature of the College's operations and the composition of the Board of Governors (being drawn from 

local public and private sector organisations) it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in 

which a member of the Board of Governors may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which 

a member of the Board of Governors may have an interest are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with 

the College's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures. 

No expenses were claimed by or paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year {2018 - £nil). 

No Governor has received any remuneration or waived payments from the College during the year {2018 - None). 
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20. Amounts disbursed as agent 

Learner support funds 

Funding body grants - bursary support 

Disbursed to students 

Administration costs 

Strode College 
Governors' report and financial statements 

For the year ended 31 July 2019 

2019 2018 
£'000 £'000 

246 195 
(165) { 138) 

(9) (9) 

Balance unspent at 31 July, included in creditors falling due within one year 72 48 

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the College only acts as a paying 

agent. The grants and related disbursements have therefore been excluded from the statement of comprehensive 

income. 
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